Minutes of Neenah Central City Business Improvement District Board April 21, 2020 – 8:00 am

Due to the Public Health Emergency caused by the COVID-19 Pandemic, this meeting occurred at a virtual location accessed by conference call on www.zoom.com.

<u>PRESEN</u>T: Board Members: Alex Noskowiak, George Brownell, Alex Wenzel, Umer Sheikh, LeeAnn Wasinger, Jane Lang, Michelle Bauer and Grant Birtch. Also present: Sara Hanneman (Future Neenah, Inc.), Nikki Hessel (Future Neenah, Inc.), Mayor Dean Kaufert, Samantha Jefferson (City of Neenah Community Development) and Ald. Todd Stevenson.

Approval of Minutes: MSC Birtch/Lang, the BID board to approve the minutes of the February 18, 2020 meeting. Motion carried.

<u>Public Appearances – Welcome Alex Wenzel</u>: Alex Wenzel, owner of Lions Tail Brewery, has joined the BID Board. Member Brownell asked that each member introduce themselves and talk about a hobby they have been enjoying while social distancing due to the pandemic.

Financials:

- Bills for Approval: MSC Birtch/Bauer the BID Board to approve bills in the amount of \$54,960.25.
 Motion carried.
- **Budget Status Report:** This budget status report includes professional staff costs and the full amount invoiced for the hanging flower baskets (the cost for weeding is not included in this amount).

Assistant Executive Director Hanneman detailed each of the other line items for those members who did not see the email attachment.

The brackets for the hanging baskets have already been installed and Assistant Executive Director Hanneman will contact Bob at Memorial Florist to determine if the flowers will still be installed and if the flower beds will be maintained as planned.

• **Review Status:** A draft of the financial review has been sent to Alex for review. The packet will include a signed cover letter. There were no red flags apparent during the review.

Executive Committee Report:

- 'Un' Annual Meeting was March 10: Assistant Executive Director Hanneman thanked everyone who attended the meeting on March 10th. BID members said they enjoyed the meeting and the format. Member Brownell appreciated being able to speak with Future Neenah Board members.
- No meeting, no report.

Maintenance Committee Report:

• **Update from March 11 meeting:** Director Wenninger did not have any new updates regarding the downtown WIFI project. The timeline for the completion of the project has been extended due to the health crisis and shut downs. Director Haese and Director Easker are looking into the budgeting of this project.

Sparkle Wash cleaned the some of the downtown yesterday and has finished the project completed over two years (2019 and 2020 for budgeting reasons).

• District Walkthrough June 17

Recruitment and Retention Report:

• No Meeting / No Report: Money from certain areas of the budget for Recruitment and Retention have been reallocated toward COVID efforts to help in the district at this time.

Public Relations and Marketing Committee Report:

Report from April 9 meeting: The PR & Marketing Committee had originally postponed Ultimate Ladies
Day to May 30th. Due to the Governor's new order, that will be postponed again until September 12, 2020.

The gift certificate reward program took place April 16th and 17th. This infused \$25,000 in to the downtown. Member Wasinger commented that business was excellent during that time.

White board signage will be given to downtown businesses to display hours, special messages, etc.

Executive Director Hessel and Assistant Executive Director Hanneman attended downtown Appleton's Virtual Shophop and are considering holding a similar event for downtown Neeenah.

Future Neenah worked on packets to give employees of ThedaCare that will be new to the downtown.

Employee Appreciation Day is being moved to the end of June (due to the normal date coinciding with the new date for Ultimate Ladies Day).

City of Neenah Updates:

Mayor Kaufert – City Updates: The City Council's Organizational meeting will be held 4/21/2020 at 7:00 p.m.
 Officials from the health department and ThedaCare will attend and give an update on the health crisis in our area. Options for the Lake Shore Drive walking/biking path will be voted on tonight by Council.

While City Hall is closed to the public and most employees are working from home, the finance department window is open for business. The Public Works department is still working on construction projects. Parks and Recreation is busy getting the parks ready for the summer and creating new programs to go on during the social distancing period. This includes the Quarantine 5k that was created for this time. The library has been allowed to open for curbside pick-up. Director Raab is working on developing a plan for this.

Small business loans can be obtained. These are loans with 2% interest that can be used in gap funding until Federal money becomes available. The City of Neenah website has instructions on how to apply.

Green Bay Road construction will be done this year.

The election in Neenah went smoothly overall and Neenah was singled out in regards to the lengths the city went to protect poll workers and citizens. The Mayor thanked Ald. Stevenson, Deputy City Clerk Cheslock and Deputy Attorney Adam VandenHeuvel for their help with the elections and the Elections Task Force. Clerk Patty Sturn retired as of last week. Neenah has placed a sixty day hold on new hires.

The lights on the "Neenah" sign at the entrance to the City on Highway 41 were changed to show a blue light to support our frontline healthcare workers during this time.

Parking costs in the downtown will be suspended in the month of May.

• **Deputy Director Schmidt – City Updates:** Community Development is working from home but work is still getting done at a regular level. Notice of Assessment Change letters went out and the department is continuing to monitor grants and loans for small businesses. Anyone can reach out to Deputy Director Schmidt or Director Haese if there are questions.

<u>Future Neenah Updates:</u> FNI is working remotely and will be determining what programming for the spring and summer will look like. As Executive Director Hessel explained, Future Neenah's main role is to bring people together and they are working to figure out what the social distancing order will mean for their organization. They are working hard to support the small businesses in the downtown during this time.

Round Table: None.

Announcements and Future Agenda Items:

Next Meeting – May 19

Adjournment: The Board adjourned at 8:54 a.m.

MSC Wasinger/ Noskowiak, the BID Board to adjourn. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Samuetalla

Samantha Jefferson

Office Manager, Community Development